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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The present Bethany Church building was erected in 1855 and stands about 100 yards from where
the original building had been erected in 1777. The 3 X 5 bay, one-story frame church has a
low gable roof with gable end facade and boxed molded eaves with wide eave returns. The front
facade has two double-leaf doors with fieldstone steps. The foundation of the church is also
of fieldstone. At the rear of the church is a small, rectangular apse. The building exhibits
perhaps the simplest form of Greek Revival church design and is very similar to Snow Creek
Methodist Church (before alterations) and numerous other churches built in the Piedmont region
auring the mid to late 19th ecentury. In the late 19503 the stained glass windows were installe
in the ganctuary and in 1970 the interior was remodelled. A breezeway connects the rear of the
church with a one-story brick education building which was constructed ca. 1965.

To the north and east of the church is a large cemetery surrounded by a flat-topped fieldstone
wall of similar construction to the Snow Creek Burying Ground wall. The two wrought-iron gates
are algo similayr in design to those at Snow Creek. The front gate has vertical pickets which
become taller toward the center and which have fleur-de-lis finials. "The left wall beside the
front gate contains the carved inscription, '"July 1825 WN." The side gate is of similar, but
much more simple design, and is in a sense more delicate than the front gate. The cemetery con
tains numerousg pre~Civil War stones, many of prominent church and community leaders, and dates

from at least 1785.

Ebenezer Academy is located on the opposite side of SR 1921 from Bethany Church on land owned
by the church. Built in 1823, the school ig a one-story, 3 X 2-bay structure measuring approxi
mately 20' X 30'. It is constructed of hand hewn, half-dovetail logs and is set on short field
stone foundation piers. The 9/6 sash windows have single-leaf batten shutters with iron strap
hinges. The gable roof is covered with wooden ghingles and the two exterior end chimneys are
replacements. 1In earlier years at least one long side of the structure was covered with weathe
boarda. The interior has one room with two large fireplaces with simple molded surrounds. The
walls and ceilings are covered with flush sheathing. Mottos and the alphabet are writtem on th
walls in chalk and are adorned with various designs, apparently dating from the 1880s, though
they have been renewed since then. The building has been heavily restored through work done in
1913, 1945, and 1968 so that at this point it is somewhat difficult to determine the extent of
the original fabric which remains. Nevertheless the building is well-maintained and still pro-
vides the image of an early 19th century Iredell school.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Ebenezer Academy, chartered in 1822 and in operation as an academy unitil 1856 and than as a
subscription school until 1903, is perhaps the most significant of the pre-Civil War schools i
Iredell County. Certainly it was in operation far longer than the reet. TIts close relation-
ship with Bethany Presbyterian Church, by whom it is still owned, is not surprising in light
of the strong personal interest in education held by Princeton-trained James Hall, first pasto
of Bethany from 1788-1816. Hall had in earlier years egtablished both Clio's Nursery and the
Academy of Sciences, and his bent toward educational training was continued by his nephews

who founded Ebenezer Academy on the grounds of Bethany Church. The Halls and other prominent
Iredell Citizens are buried in Bethany Church Cemetery, which dates from it least 1785 and is
distinguished by a dry~laid stone wall and decorative iron gates similar to those at 3now Cree
Burying Ground. After Ebenezer Academy closed its doors in 1903, Hall descendents worked to
preserve it for the future. Preservation efforts in 1913, 1945, and 1968 proved successful an
repregent an early example of historic preservation in Iredell County.

CRITERIA ASSESSMENT

Ebenezer Academy and Bethany Presbyterian Church have made a significant contribution to educa
tional and religious development in Iredell County. Bethany Church is one of the oldest con-
gregationg in the county, having been created in 1775 by the division of Fourth Creek Church
into three congregations, and acted as a f{ocal point not only in the religious, but also in th
social and educational life of the area it served. The relationship between the church and ed
cation was probably stronger at Bethany than anywhere else in Iredell, largely due to the firs
pastor, James Hall. This commitment was passed down to Hall's nephews and other members of
the congregation and led to the establishment in 1822 of Ebenezer Academy, perhaps the most
successful of the pre-Civil War academies in Iredell County.

Bethany Presbyterian Church and Ebenezer Academy are associated with a prominent family of
Iredell educators, the Halls. James Hall, a graduate of Princeton (then called Nassau Hall)
and first pastor of Bethany Church from 1788-1816, established two important Iredell schools
in the 18th century - firgt Clio's Nursery near Snow Creek and, after it closed, the Academy
of Sciences next to his home near Bethany. His nephews, also university trained, along with
other members of Bethany congregation, established Ebenezer Academy in 1822, Robert Sloan
Hall and Alexander Hall served as Ebenezer's first and second teachers, respectively. Hugh

Roddy Hall was probably the best known of Ebenezer's teachers, serving nearly a quarter of a
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century from 1832 to 1856. These men provided educational training for many prominent
19th century citizens, not only from Iredell County but from other counties and states

as well,

C. Bethany Cemetery is representative of a group of Iredell cemeteries dating from the late
18th century, which feature dry-laid stone walls and decorative iron gates. The skills
of at least one local artisan are exhibited in the two gates at Bethany, one having
pickets with fleur-de-lis finials and the other having a simpler but more delicate de-

sign. These gates relate in design to those found at Snow Creek Burying Ground.
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schools--Clio‘s Nursery and the Academy of Sciences—-was continued by his descendents
in the establishment of Ebenezer Academy on the grounds of Bethany Church. Rober:t Sloa
Hall began teaching in the session house at Bethany in 1821. The following year
Ebenezer Academy was_chartered by the state with all eleven trustees being associated
with Bethany Church.

Ebenezer Academy was constructed in 1823. On December 9, 1823, William A. Bell of the
Western Carolinian (Salisbury) reported:

This institution was incorporated during the session of the General Assembly
in 1822, It is now open to all who wish either to pursue a course of liberal
education or study English Grammar and Geography. All branches of education
required for admission into college will be taught. We are happy in stating
to the public that a new and commodious Academy will be completed in a few
days. This academy is in a rural situation, six miles from Statesville, so
that students will be measurably free from temptationioto vice. It is con-
venient to church, where there is preaching statedly,

Robert Sloan Hall was followed by his nephew, Alexander Hall, who served as principal
of the school until 1825. After Alexander Hall joined the western migration, the schoo
was turned back to Robert Sloan Hall for a few years. The best known teacher at Ebecnez
was Hugh Roddy Hall, who came in 1832 and continued until 1856, giving Ebenezer a longe
history than any of Iredell’s earlier academies. Students came not only from the sur-
rounding area, but from other states as well. Many EbTTezer students went on to become
doctors, ministers, lawyers, teachers and congressmen.

From 1856-1903 Ebenezer was used as a public subscription school.l2 Two prominent
teachers during the 1880s were John Paris and Laura Lazenby. Paris was responsible 3
for the colored chalk mottoes and designs written in beautiful seript on the walls,
Laura Lazenby later operated thelfirst kindergarten in Statesville and lived on Bell
Street in the Academy Hill area.

By 1900, a new public sch?gl had been built across the road and Ebenezer ceased to

function socon thereafter. The lasgt teacher wag Mary Lizzie Hall, a granddaughter of
Hugh Hall. Ten vyears later s?g and her father, Dr. E. A. Hall, took over the school,
preserving it for the future. In 1945 and again in 1968 the building was "restored.”

Although the pregent building containg much replacewent fabric, these efforts at preser
vation from 1913 to the present are gsignificant in themselves, pointing out the strong
sentiments attached to Ebenezer by Hall descendents, the Bethany congregation and the
comnunity. Ebenezer Academy is still owned by Bethany Church and is now used as,the
chapter house of the Fourth Creek Chapter, Daughters of the American Revolution.



HISTORICAL BACKGROUND

Bethany Presbyterian Church was created in 1775 thy .gh the division of Fourth Creek Congre-
gation into Fourth Creek, Concord, and Bethany churches. However, it was 1777 before the
first frame church structure was built. About four acres of land was deeded to the congre-
gation by Hugh M. Hall and his brother, W. Davidson Hall., On April 8, 1778, Rev. James Hall
was ordained as pastor of Fourth Creek, Bethany and Concord churches.” Hall was a 1774
graduate of Nassau Hall (later Princeton University), served as a chaplain during the Revolu-
tion and played a major role in the education of the area by founding two prominent 18th
century schools in Iredell~-~first Clio's Nursery of Arts and Sciences near Snow Creek and
then the Academy of Sciences in a building next to his home near Bethany. Hall served all
three churches until 1790, when he resigned from his work at Fourth Creel and Concord in orde
to be able to devote full time to Bethany Church and to missignary work. His misaionary
work led him as far west as Natchez on the Mississippi River.  Hall was a great supporter

of the Revival movement which was so controversial in the Piedmont region during the early
19th century, and his church supported him in this enthusiasg. In 1816 poor health forced
Hall to resign his position at Bethany, and he died in 1826. Hall was buried in Bethany
Cemetery, as were other members of his extended family, many of whom were prominent in local
religious and educational affairs.

Other pastors made significant contributions to Bethany Church and to the growth of Presby-
terianism in the area. Because the earliest written records of Bethany had apparently been
lost, Rev. Stephen Frontis, who served as pastor from 1828 to 1836, compiled .the early histor
of the church and recorded it in the front section of the Session Book. Frontis also began a
Temperance Society and a Sunday School. In 1855 under the pastorate of Rev, B. §. Krider,
the present church building was constructed. Although there have been some alterations, the
present building looks not tcoo dissimilar from when it was built,

The black congregation of Bethany Church was the first in Iredell and one of the first in thi
area of the state to withdraw from the white congregation and form a church of its own. The
blacks were led by Rev. Sidney S. Murkland, white pastor of Bethany Church during the Civil
War years. Murkland removed the bar in the church that divided the blacks from the whites,
and later made an address before the North Carolina Synod in which he advocated the abolition
of slavery. He finally resigned under much pressure and in 1865 organized the black members
of Bethany into Freedom Presbyterian Church. The following year, this ghurch along with
another in Mecklenburg County were organized into a Catawba Presbytery.

Bethany Presbyterian Church still has an active congregation; The strong concern for educa-
tion held by Bethany Church's first pastor, Rev. James Hall, as evidenced in his 18th century
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Hereinafter referred to as Miller, '"Bethany Presbyterian Church,"

IGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROFERTY 6 1/4
UTM REFERENCES

All7) sl loa3io) (3.9160814:6,0) 8l , | Lol Lo

ZONE EASTING NORTHING ZONE EASTIN NORTHING
cl o Ll Ly LJ [ J ST T T T T |

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
All of Tract 49, Block A, Map 10G, Bethany Township, Iredell County, North Carolina, as
outlined in red on map.

This property includes the church, the cemetery and the academy with their immediate

surroundings.
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